
1

TO THE CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held 
on Monday, 18 October 2021 at 7.00 pm in the Council Chamber - Civic Offices.

The agenda for the meeting is set out below.

JULIE FISHER
Chief Executive

NOTE:  Filming Council Meetings

Please note the meeting will be filmed and will be broadcast live and subsequently as an archive on the 
Council’s website (www.woking.gov.uk).  The images and sound recording will also be used for training 
purposes within the Council.  Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However by entering the 
meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed.

AGENDA
PART I - PRESS AND PUBLIC PRESENT

Part I - Press and Public Present

1 Apologies for Absence 
To receive any apologies for absence.

2 Minutes (Pages 5 - 14)
To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 13 September 2021 as 
published.

3 Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes OSC21-033. (Pages 15 - 24)
To review and outstanding items from the previous minutes.  A report setting out the actions 
to arise from the last meeting of the Committee, together with progress achieved, is 
attached.

4 Urgent Business 
To consider any business that the Chairman rules may be dealt with under Section 100B(4) 
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Public Document Pack



2

5 Declarations of Interest 
To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary and other interests from Members in 
respect of any item to be considered at the meeting.

Matters for Determination

6 Work Programme OSC21-030. (Pages 25 - 46)
Reporting person: Councillor J Sanderson

7 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee's Budget OSC21-029. (Pages 47 - 52)
Reporting Person: Frank Jeffrey

Performance Management

8 Performance and Financial Monitoring Information (Pages 53 - 104)
To consider the current publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information 
(Green Book) for August 2021.  A copy of the document was sent to all Members at the end 
of September and the Members of the Committee were invited to raise any questions they 
may have in advance of this meeting to enable timely responses to be given.

Reporting person: Councillor J Sanderson 

Matters for Scrutiny

9 Rutland and Thameswey Update OSC21-031. (To follow) 
Reporting Person: Louise Strongitharm

10 Financial Review Monthly Update OSC21-032. (Pages 105 - 108)
Reporting Person: Giorgio Framalicco

Task Group Updates

11 Finance Task Group Update OSC21-034. (Pages 109 - 110)
To receive an update from the Finance Task Group following its meeting on 29 September 
2021.

Reporting person: Councillor James Sanderson, Chairman of the Finance Task Group.

12 Housing Task Group Update OSC21-035 (Pages 111 - 112)
To receive an update from the Housing Task Group following its meeting on 21 September 
2021.

Reporting person: Councillor Ann-Marie Barker, Chairman of the Housing Task Group.



3

AGENDA ENDS

Date Published - 6 October 2021

For further information regarding this agenda and 
arrangements for the meeting, please contact Aadam 
Ahmed, Scrutiny & Democratic Services Officer, Ext 3056, 
Email Aadam.Ahmed@woking.gov.uk 





Overview and Scrutiny Committee 13 September 2021

144

MINUTES

OF A MEETING OF THE 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

held on 13 September 2021

Present:
Cllr J R Sanderson (Chairman)

Cllr S Hussain (Vice-Chair)

Cllr J Brown
Cllr S Dorsett

Cllr J Brown
Cllr S Dorsett

Also Present: Councillors S Ashall, A Azad, A-M Barker and D Harlow.

Absent: Councillors R N Leach, R Mohammed and E Nicholson.

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors R Leach, R Mohammed and E 
Nicholson.

2. MINUTES 

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on Monday, 12 July 
2021 be approved and signed as a true and correct record.

3. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MINUTES 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy

The Chairman noted that the item on Health and Wellbeing Strategy had been considered 
by the Executive before being adopted by Council at its meeting on 30 July 2021.

Work Programme

A proposal to undertake a scrutiny review of the Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) 
scheme, discussed at the last meeting, appeared later on the agenda.

Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

It was noted that Councillor Nicholson had suggested the possibility of arranging a briefing 
for Members on the Performance and Financial Monitoring Information (the ‘Green Book’).  
Progress on arranging an event would be considered outside of the meeting.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 13 September 2021

145

4. URGENT BUSINESS 

There was no urgent business to discuss. 

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were received.

6. HOUSING SERVICES REVIEW 2021 - UPDATE OSC21-019. 

The Committee received a report providing an update on the Housing Services Review 
which had been under taken over the past year.  Following completion of the review, a new 
Housing Strategy had been prepared before being adopted by Council in July 2021 
following a public consultation.  The Housing Strategy set out the Council’s vision for the 
period 2021 to 2026, covering the scope of the Authority’s Housing Services and 
complementing other policies of the Council.  

It was noted that the focus of the Strategy was on increasing the supply of affordable 
housing while making best use of the existing stock.  The priorities identified were:

 To provide well designed, high quality homes that were affordable and met 
local needs;

 To prevent homelessness and help those in housing need;

 To help people to achieve independence and wellbeing;

 To deliver an improved housing service to tenants and leaseholders;

 To enhance choice, standards and quality within the private rented sector.

The report set out each of the recommendations identified by the Housing Services Review 
and the progress achieved in meeting them.

The Committee noted that the Planning Committee had received training on the viability 
assessment process in February 2021 and Officers were asked whether a further session 
would be arranged in light of the changes to the membership of the Planning Committee in 
May 2021.  Officers undertook to revisit the training later in the year in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Planning Committee.  Any training materials would be forwarded on to 
Members.

The consultation was discussed and the Members were advised that the number of 
responses received had been positive, significantly higher than had been expected.  The 
feedback received through the consultation exercise had led to subsequent changes to a 
number of the themes within the Policy, notably around prioritising social rents and further 
details around sustainability measures, as well as drawing out smarter objectives.  The 
Committee noted the good response from the public consultation and the emphasis on 
social rented accommodation and sustainability.

The number of empty properties was discussed and it was noted that the owners of empty 
properties were charged twice as much Council Tax as occupied premises after one year 
of the property being empty (unless going through probate).  Officers undertook to provide 

Page 6



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 13 September 2021

146

Members with the number of empty properties for which double council tax was being paid, 
if available.

Officers advised that the Council worked hard to reduce the number of empty properties 
working with partner organisations including Thameswey Housing, recognising that there 
were often complex reasons for a property being left empty which took a significant amount 
of time to address.  In terms of comparison with other, similar Authorities, it was estimated 
that Woking was mid-table.

Recommendation 3 had stated that “Where a viability case results in fewer affordable 
homes being proposed a S106 agreement in order to provide the option for the actual costs 
and values to be completed”.  Officers confirmed that  S106 agreements were sought in 
such circumstances, noting that each agreement was subject to negotiations, and offered 
to provide a few examples outside of the meeting.

The Chairman summarised the key elements of the update, noting the discussion around 
empty homes, the successful consultation and the use of 106 agreements.  The Chairman 
thanked Councillor Harlow, Louise Strongitharm and Jon Herbert for the presentation and 
their work around the Strategy. 

RESOLVED

That the report on progress be noted.

7. WORK PROGRAMME OSC21-018. 

The Chairman introduced the Work Programme for the Committee, which sought to assist 
Members with the overview and scrutiny role of the Council by providing an indication of 
the Committee’s workload and the future work programme of the Executive.  Items which 
had been changed or added to the Work Programme since its last meeting were 
highlighted, including the intention to undertake a survey of Leisure Facility Users in 2022 
and the addition of a presentation by Enterprise M3, the Local Enterprise Partnership, to 
the meeting in February 2022.  It was noted that the report included an extended forward 
plan of decisions to be taken by the Executive in the current Municipal Year.

The Committee had previously asked to again review the play area provision, which had 
last been reviewed earlier in the year.  The review was scheduled for the beginning of 
2023, though the Chairman indicated that ideally it would be brought forward.

Key items scheduled for the year included a review of the use of Lakeview Community 
Centre (October 2021), review of Freedom Leisure performance (November 2021), the 
performance of the waste management service and an update on Dr Edila’s report 
(January 2022), and Enterprise M3 (February 2022).  One new item to be added to the 
work programme was the follow up to the motion passed at the last Council meeting in 
regard to a financial review of the Authority.  The motion had specified that monthly 
progress reports would be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The 
Committee was advised that the process to appoint an independent reviewer was 
underway, with the contract to be awarded in October.  The presentation of the final report 
was scheduled for the week commencing 13 December 2021.  Once the contract had been 
awarded, a meeting between the reviewer and the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee would be arranged.  The Chairman asked for an update on the review at its 
next meeting.

Page 7



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 13 September 2021

147

Councillor Kirby asked whether the Committee would be in a position to direct the review.  
The Members were advised that the Motion simply stated that monthly reports would be 
presented to the Committee; however the Chairman would be involved with discussions 
with the reviewer.  How the Committee could be more involved would be considered further 
at its next meeting, noting the narrow timescale for the review.

A suggestion was made that the update on the performance of the waste management 
service should be brought forward in the timetable in view of concerns over garden waste 
collection and missed collections.  Officers undertook to explore whether the matter could 
be brought to the October or November meeting of the Committee.

RESOLVED

That the Work Programme be noted. 

8. SCRUTINY REVIEW PROPOSAL - THE HOUSING INFRASTRUCTURE BID. 

The Chairman introduced a formal proposal for the establishment of a scrutiny review of 
the Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) scheme, avoiding any overlap with the existing HIF 
Oversight Panel.  The focus of the proposed O&S review was intended to provide effective 
constructive critical friend challenge, focussing on:

o the decisions the project was planning to make;

o how these were planned to be implemented;

o amplifying the voices and concerns of communities;

o improving outcomes; and,

o contributing to the development of a vision for the project and how this connected 
with related Council strategy and other change activity.

It was proposed that the review would initially be undertaken by Internal Audit and it was 
confirmed that the proposal would be presented to the Standards and Audit Committee at 
its meeting later in the week.  If supported, the report prepared by Internal Audit would be 
presented to a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with a view to:

o provide assurance that all the risks in respect of the scheme had been identified and 
that there was sufficient mitigation in place to manage the risks;

o provide assurance that due processes in decision making and project management 
had been applied and assess how the demands and potential conflicts of multiple 
major projects occurring concurrently were managed; and

o identify the wider lessons from a project of this scale with very significant external 
dependencies.

An audit would be completed with the intention of reporting back to the Committee at its 
meeting on 22 November 2021.  It was noted that a separate report – Update on the HIF 
scheme – was scheduled for consideration by the Executive in October.

Page 8



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 13 September 2021

148

The Members of the Committee would subsequently propose how they would help to 
develop a vision for the project, setting out how it connected with related Council strategies 
and other change activities.

The Chairman stressed that, whilst the review would be forward looking, it would consider 
how the scheme had developed and how the decisions of the Council had been reached.  
Councillor Kirby suggested that the review should include the timeline of all the meetings 
with any external bodies and the reasons why Members had made the decisions around 
the HIF scheme.  It was suggested the review should consider three elements of the 
scheme; economic, financial and democratic.

Some concern was expressed that the work would revisit and review the decisions of the 
Members at the time, rather than being a forward looking review.  The Chairman advised 
that an element of ‘looking back’ would be needed and that a timeline would be helpful.  
The proposals had been drafted in such a way that the work would support that of the HIF 
Oversight Panel, rather than duplicate efforts.  It was made clear that, whilst the review 
would not look at how decisions had been made and why, there would be an element of 
background information to set the scene for the review.  

The wording of the form was discussed and Councillor Kirby suggested that greater 
prominence could be given to the inclusion in the scope of the work to look at the risks of 
the scheme and the mitigation identified.  It was therefore proposed that the paragraph on 
providing assurance that all risks had been identified should be moved to be included 
under the focus of the review.  The suggestion was agreed and it was

RESOLVED

That the proposed review of the Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) scheme 
be agreed, as amended in terms of the placement of the paragraph on the 
identification of risks.

9. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY GUIDANCE BY THE MHCLG OSC21-023. 

The Committee received a report which explored the provisions of the statutory guidance 
on overview and scrutiny published by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) in 2019.  The report reviewed the Council’s arrangements in light of 
the guidance and identified a wide range of recommendations for the Committee as a 
means of strengthening the Council’s overview and scrutiny work.  

The recommendations had been developed within the context of recent developments at 
Woking Borough Council which impacted on the way in which the scrutiny responsibility of 
the Authority was taken forward.  These included the changes arising from the 
recommendations put forward by Dr Gifty Edila.  The guidance was also to be seen in the 
context of the Council’s own arrangements which include a number of cross party oversight 
panels. 

Councillor Azad welcomed the very positive report and affirmed the Executive’s supportive 
position in terms of scrutiny and its willingness to work positively with the Committee. 

Included within the recommendations was the proposal for the establishment of a protocol 
between the Committee and the Executive, a document which, if supported by the 
Committee, would be prepared in consultation with the respective Chairmen over the 
coming months.  

Page 9



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 13 September 2021

149

Noting the occasional delay between the publication of the ‘Green Book’ and a meeting of 
the Committee, the report proposed that a new approach should be adopted whereby the 
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee would be encouraged, where possible, 
to raise any questions or areas of concern arising from the ‘Green Book’ with the Chairman 
of the Committee in advance of the meeting of the Committee.  A report summarising the 
points raised and responses given would subsequently be presented to the Committee.

It was noted that, subject to the decisions of the Committee, the Work Programme would 
be updated to take account of the proposals which would need to be brought back for 
consideration by the Members of the Committee.

The report was welcomed by the Committee and it was

RESOLVED

That (i) a formal opportunity for discussion between the Chairman of the 
Committee and the Leader of the Council be established;

(ii) a draft Executive / Overview and Scrutiny Committee protocol be 
drawn up for consideration by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and recommendation onto the Executive, in 
consultation with the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Leader of the Council;

(iii) a report be brought to a future meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee proposing the adoption of management 
arrangements for the release of, reporting on and audit of, the 
Scrutiny budget, the proposals to be drafted in consultation with 
the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Committee;

(iv) a communications plan be established on the work of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee which would promote the work 
of the Committee within the resources available; 

(v) the Scrutiny Tool Kit be updated to include, amongst other points, 
reference to the new Officer support arrangements, the budget 
available for Scrutiny work and the guidance available, notably 
that issued by the Local Government Association, the MHCLG, 
South East Employers and the Centre for Governance and 
Scrutiny; 

(vi) the Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, where 
possible, raise any questions or areas of concern arising from the 
‘Green Book’ with the Chairman of the Committee in advance of 
the meeting of the Committee; 

(vii) a report summarising the points raised on the ‘Green Book’ and 
responses given be presented to the subsequent meeting of the 
Committee;

(viii) the guide to scrutiny of risk and commercialisation published by 
the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny, be brought to a future 
meeting of the Committee for consideration;

Page 10



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 13 September 2021

150

(ix) before agreeing a topic for scrutiny review, a scrutiny review topic 
form to be completed by the Member/Officer proposing the 
review, for agreement at the next available Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee; 

(x) any consideration of topics for scrutiny to highlight the benefits of 
the work for residents and take into account the Work 
Programme in assessing the resources necessary, and the work 
of each Scrutiny Review Task Group be informed by the 
practices and approaches endorsed by the Scrutiny Tool Kit.  

10. THE ELECTIONS BILL 2021 OSC21-022. 

The Committee was presented with a report which set out the proposals contained in the 
recently published Elections Bill.  This report was simply for information; the Bill had 
completed its first reading on 5 July 2021 and second reading on 7 September, moving into 
the more detailed committee stage, the point at which detailed examination of the Bill took 
place.  The Bill had a number of stages to go through before being enacted and it was 
hoped that a timetable would soon be available.  The Members were advised that updates 
for the Council will be made through the Council’s Elections and Electoral Registration 
Review Panel and that a further briefing paper will be prepared once the Bill has been 
enacted.

Included within the Bill were a number of high profile recommendations, including the 
introduction of ID to vote in polling stations.  As the Members were aware, Woking Borough 
Council had participated in the Government’s Voter Identification pilot in recent years, the 
findings of which had clearly informed some of the proposals in the new Bill.

Attention was also drawn to the proposals within the Bill to introduce a greater role for the 
Government in the terms of the discharge of duties by the Electoral Commission, with the 
proposed introduction of a Strategy and Policy Statement, to be approved by Parliament, 
which would provide the Commission with guidance.  This proposal, together with the 
introduction of voter ID had been covered by national press in recent days, with concerns 
and reservations expressed by a number of organisations.

The Bill, if approved, would impact on the residents of the Borough, particularly in respect 
of the introduction of voter ID for polling stations, though Woking’s participation in the pilot 
exercise in previous years would make the transition easier than would be the case in other 
Boroughs and Districts.  Other changes would impact on postal voters, limiting the 
timeframe to a maximum of three years before a new application to vote by post would 
have to be made by the elector.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

11. PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION 

The Committee had before it the performance and financial monitoring information (the 
‘Green Book’) for July 2021.  Members expressed concerns over the current waste 
collection service, in particular the number of missed collections, the cancellation of the 
green waste collection service and the absence of data.  It was noted that the interruption 

Page 11



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 13 September 2021

151

in service had been a result of the national shortage of HGV drivers and that many 
Councils were struggling to maintain services.  The missing data on refuse collections had 
now been received by Joint Waste Solutions and would be released in due course.

In terms of refuse collections made on time, Councillor Kirby suggested that the data 
should in future be split into the different types of refuse.

Flytipping was discussed and the Chairman advised that the number of incidents appeared 
to be lower than in the previous year, though remained high and was still an area of 
concern

It was noted that the financial information in the Green Book would be reviewed by the 
Finance Task Group.

RESOLVED

That the Green Book be noted.

12. FINANCE TASK GROUP UPDATE OSC21-021. 

The Chairman presented the report of the Finance Task Group following its meeting in 
July.  The Group had focussed on the Statement of Accounts and the delays, with the audit 
of the previous year’s accounts yet to be completed.  The Group had also looked at the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy, treasury management, Victoria Square and commercial 
rents.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

13. HOUSING TASK GROUP UPDATE OSC21 020. 

The report on the recent meeting of the Housing Task Group had been prepared by its 
Chairman, Councillor Barker, who introduced the report at the meeting.  The Committee 
had considered the draft Housing Strategy, New Vision Homes (NVH) and bringing 
Housing Services in-house and tackling homelessness.  The Committee noted that, at the 
time of the meeting of the Task Group, there had been no recorded homeless individuals 
on the streets of the Borough.

RESOLVED 

That the report be noted.

14. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT TASK GROUP UPDATE OSC21-024. 

The Chairman of the Economic Development Task Group, Councillor Roberts, had 
prepared a report on the discussions at the meeting of the Task Group held on 25 August 
2021.

Page 12



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 13 September 2021

152

The Task Group had reviewed a draft report on the economic development action plan for 
post-pandemic recovery, before the report was presented to the Executive.  The action 
plan proposed a number of activities that would support the recovery of the local economy.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm
and ended at 8.40 pm

Chairman: Date:

Page 13





OSC21-033

THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 18 OCTOBER 2021

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MINUTES

Executive Summary

This report provides an update on matters arising from the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 13 September 2021.  The details summarise the progress made on achieving 
the desired outcomes from decisions taken by the Committee and requests from individual Elected 
Members.

Actions arising from the Committee are managed through the Council’s Action Management system 
which was developed to capture and monitor the actions arising from (i) meetings of the Council and 
(ii) Internal Audit Reviews.

This is the first such report to be brought to the Committee and covers the actions identified at the 
meeting held on 13 September 2021.  In future, a similar report will be prepared for each meeting, 
listing any actions previously identified at meetings of the Committee together with the progress 
achieved.  Once an action has been closed and subsequently reported to the Committee, it will be 
dropped from future reports.

Recommendations

The Committee is requested to:

RESOLVE That the report be noted.

The Committee has the authority to determine the recommendation set out above.

Background Papers: None.

Reporting Person: Frank Jeffrey, Head of Democratic Services
Email: frank.jeffrey@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3012
Aadam Ahmed, Scrutiny and Democratic Services Officer
Email: Aadam.ahmed@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3056

Contact Person: Frank Jeffrey, Head of Democratic Services
Email: frank.jeffrey@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3012
Aadam Ahmed, Scrutiny and Democratic Services Officer
Email: Aadam.ahmed@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3056

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ayesha Azad
Email: cllrayesha.azad@woking.gov.uk

Shadow Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ann-Marie Barker
Email: cllrann-marie.barker@woking.gov.uk

Date Published: 8 October 2021

REPORT ENDS

Page 15

Agenda Item 3



Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes

Page 16



OSC21-033

Update on Actions Arising from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

13 September 2021

1.0 Agenda Item 3 - Matters Arising From the Previous Minutes.

Action To arrange a briefing for Cllr Nicholson/other Members on the Green Book.

Progress A date has been arranged for 8 October 2021.

Responsible Person Frank Jeffrey
1.1

Status Closed.

2.0 Agenda Item 6 - Housing Services Review 2021 – Update

Action To provide Members of the Committee with examples of S106 agreements negotiated with developers where 
the viable level of affordable housing has been assessed lower than the calculated figure.

Progress Information was disseminated to Members prior to Committee Meeting on 18 October 2021 regarding 
examples of S106 agreements, alongside information on Viability Training.

Responsible Person Giorgio Framalicco

2.1

Status Closed

Action To provide, if available, the number of empty properties for which double council tax is paid.

2.2
Progress

There are currently 109 accounts that are being charged the empty homes premium. Of those, at least 14 are 
Woking Borough Council owned properties that form part of the Sheerwater regeneration project and are likely 
to be demolished.
The annual empty homes premium raised at debit was £260,870 for 2021/22.

P
age 17



Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes

Responsible Person Louise Strongitharm

Status Closed

Action To arrange a further session for Members on the viability assessment of developments for affordable housing.

Progress
Information was disseminated to Members prior to Committee Meeting on 18 October 2021 with a link to a 
recording of the original briefing alongside slides from the original briefing. This was sent alongside a response 
to the query raised on S106 agreements. Another briefing will be arranged at the start of the 2022/2023 Municipal 
Year.

Responsible Person Frank Jeffrey

2.3

Status Open

3.0 Agenda Item 7 - Work Programme

Action To bring an update on the financial review to the meeting of the Committee on 18 October 2021.

Progress A report has been included elsewhere on the agenda.  A further update has been scheduled for the meeting of 
the Committee on 22 November 2021.

Responsible Person Giorgio Framalicco

3.1

Status Closed

Action To bring an update on the financial review to the meeting of the Committee on 22 November 2021.

Progress A report will be presented to the Committee at its meeting on 22 November 2021.3.2

Responsible Person Giorgio Framalicco

P
age 18



Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes

Status Open

Action To advise whether the review of play areas could be moved forward from early 2023 to late 2022 following a 
request by the Chairman of the Committee.

Progress The proposal is still to be agreed with the portfolio holder but bringing forward the proposed review to late 2022 
appears to be quite achievable.

Responsible Person Geoff McManus

3.3

Status Open

Action To arrange a meeting between the Chairman of the Committee and the Independent Reviewer (once appointed) 
to discuss the Financial Review.

Progress In progress, Consultants appointed early October 2021. See Agenda item 10 – Financial Review Monthly Update 
OSC21-032 for more information.

Responsible Person Giorgio Framalicco

3.4

Status Open

Action
To advise whether the item on the review of the waste management service performance scheduled for January 
2022 could be brought forward to October or November 2021.  This follows concerns over the failure to provide 
data and the issues around the garden waste service.

Progress
We would ask that the update remains scheduled for January 2022 when we should be in a much better position 
to be certain regarding service provision and also report on progress of the Resources and Waste Strategy which 
will have significant impact upon future waste and recycling services. In the interim members will continue to be 
updated regarding ongoing service issues. 

Responsible Person Geoff McManus

3.5

Status Closed

P
age 19



Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes

4.0 Agenda Item 8 – Scrutiny Review Proposal – The Housing Infrastructure Bid.

Action To take forward a proposal by the Members of the Committee to undertake a scrutiny review of the Housing 
Infrastructure Fund scheme.

Progress

The outline of the review, as amended by the Committee, was presented to the Standards and Audit Committee 
at its meeting on 16 September 2021.  The Standards and Audit Committee supported the proposal to use 
Internal Audit to undertake the initial review and agreed to the necessary changes to the 2021/22 Audit Plan.
The report of Internal Audit is scheduled to be brought to the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
on 22 November 2021, at which point the Committee will be invited what further work is to be undertaken.

Responsible Person Giorgio Framalicco

4.1

Status Open

5.0 Agenda Item 9 – Overview and Scrutiny Guidance by the MHCLG

Action A communications plan be established on the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee which would 
promote the work of the Committee within the resources available.

Progress This is scheduled for completion later in the year and includes the creation of a web pages on the Council’s site.

Responsible Person Frank Jeffrey

5.1

Status Open

5.2 Action A formal opportunity for discussion between the Chairman of the Committee and the Leader of the Council be 
established.

P
age 20



Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes

Progress Dates to be put in place over coming weeks as part of the development of a protocol between the Committee 
and the Executive.

Responsible Person Frank Jeffrey

Status Open

Action
The Scrutiny Tool Kit be updated to include, amongst other points, reference to the new Officer support 
arrangements, the budget available for Scrutiny work and the guidance available, notably that issued by the 
Local Government Association, the MHCLG, South East Employers and the Centre for Governance and 
Scrutiny.

Progress A report setting out the revised Scrutiny Toolkit is scheduled to be brought to the meeting of the Committee on 
22 November 2021.

Responsible Person Frank Jeffrey

5.3

Status Open

Action The guide to scrutiny of risk and commercialisation published by the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny, be 
brought to a future meeting of the Committee for consideration.

Progress This guide will be brought to the meeting of the Committee on 21 February 2022, the Work Programme has 
been updated accordingly.

Responsible Person Frank Jeffrey

5.4

Status Closed

5.5 Action
A draft Executive / Overview and Scrutiny Committee protocol be drawn up for consideration by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee and recommendation onto the Executive, in consultation with the Chairman and Vice 
Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Leader of the Council.

P
age 21



Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes

Progress Drafting of the Protocol has started and a report is scheduled to be brought to meeting of the Committee on 22 
November 2021.

Responsible Person Frank Jeffrey

Status Open

Action
A report be brought to a future meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee proposing the adoption of 
management arrangements for the release of, reporting on and audit of, the Scrutiny budget, the proposals to 
be drafted in consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Committee.

Progress Report proposing a protocol for the oversight of the Scrutiny budget appears elsewhere on this agenda.

Responsible Person Frank Jeffrey

5.6

Status Closed

6.0 Agenda Item 11 – Performance and Financial Monitoring Information.

Action To consider whether future Green Books can provide data for refuse collections made on time for each type of 
refuse, as requested by Councillor Kirby.

Progress

We currently provide performance data consistently with other partners which normally reflects a small 
proportion of missed collections relative to the scale of the operation across the borough each week. 
As part of the waste management service report scheduled for January 2022 officers will be in attendance to 
talk through the processes in place to monitor waste collections and consider any further reporting information 
which could be made available for members.

Responsible Person Geoff McManus

6.1

Status Open

P
age 22



Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes

P
age 23





OSC21-030

Overview and Scrutiny
Work Programme

This Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme is published with the purpose of assisting the Council in its 
overview and scrutiny role.  The Work Programme covers the following areas:

o Items for consideration at future meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

o Any Scrutiny Review Topics proposed by Members of the Council for inclusion on the Work 
Programme.

o Any topics identified for pre-decision scrutiny.

o The draft forward programme of work for the Executive.

o Details of the current Task Groups under the Committee’s remit.
The Work Programme is designed to assist the Council with its overview and scrutiny role by providing 
Members with an indication of the current workload, subjects to be considered for review and items which 
the Executive expects to consider at its future meetings, so that matters can be raised beforehand and/or 
consultations undertaken with a Member of the Executive prior to the relevant meeting.

Any changes to the Work Programme since it was last published have been highlighted in green.

The Committee
Chairman: Councillor J Sanderson

Vice-Chairman: Councillor S Hussain
Councillor J Brown Councillor R Leach
Councillor S Dorsett Councillor R Mohammed
Councillor A Kirby Councillor E Nicholson

Councillor M I Raja

2021/22 Committee Dates
7 June 2021 22 November 2021
12 July 2021 24 January 2022
13 September 2021 21 February 2022
18 October 2021 21 March 2022

Recommendations

The Committee is requested to:

RESOLVE That the report be noted.

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

The Committee has the authority to determine the recommendation set out above.

Background Papers: None.

Reporting Person: Councillor James Sanderson
Email: cllrjames.sanderson@woking.gov.uk

Contact Person: Frank Jeffrey, Head of Democratic Services
Email: frank.jeffrey@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3012
Aadam Ahmed, Scrutiny and Democratic Services Officer
Email: Aadam.ahmed@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3056

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ayesha Azad
Email: cllrayesha.azad@woking.gov.uk

Shadow Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ann-Marie Barker
Email: cllrann-marie.barker@woking.gov.uk

Date Published: 8 October 2021

REPORT ENDS

Page 26



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Page 27



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Suggested Additions to the Work Programme

Following the last meeting of the Committee, the Chairman and Vice-Chairman provided Officers with a 
list of items for consideration over the coming year.  Where possible, these have been added to the Work 
Programme.  Set out below are any ideas which have been requested but are yet to be included against 
a specific meeting of the Committee. 

Decision to be Taken Proposed by Officer Comment

Play Area Provision. Chairman and Vice-Chairman This was last reviewed by the 
Committee in January 2021.  It 
is proposed that it is brought 
back to the Committee at the 
beginning of 2023.

Page 28



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Page 29



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

The Work Programme 2021/22

Set out over the coming pages are the items programmed for consideration over the 2021/22 Municipal 
Year.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 22 November 2021

1 – Performance Management

1.1 Performance & Financial Monitoring Information.  For the Committee to consider the current 
publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2 – Matters for Consideration

2.1 Work Programme.  For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2.2 Celebrate Woking Review and Forward Plan.  To receive an update on the work of Celebrate 
Woking For including future plans.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Riette Thomas
Chris Norrington

2.3 Treasury Management Mid-year Review 2020/21.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Leigh Clarke

2.4 Freedom Leisure Performance Review.  To receive a report from the Leisure Partnership Board 
on the performance of Freedom Leisure.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

Leisure Partnership Board None Steve May

Page 30



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

2.5 Financial Review Monthly Update.  To receive a monthly report on the Financial Review of 
Woking Borough Council.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

Leisure Partnership Board None Leigh Clarke

2.6 Housing Infrastructure Fund Scrutiny Review.  To receive a report on the work of Internal 
Audit on the Housing Infrastructure Fund scrutiny review.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

Leisure Partnership Board None Giorgio Framalicco

2.6 Executive / Overview and Scrutiny Committee Protocol.  To consider the draft protocol 
outlining the relationship between the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Executive.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

Chairman of the Committee
Leader of the Council

None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2.6 The Scrutiny Toolkit.  To adopt a revised Toolkit for Scrutiny.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

3 – Task Group Updates

3.1 Task Group Update.  To receive an update from any meetings of the three Task Groups under 
the remit of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman of each Task Group

Page 31



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 24 January 2022

1 – Performance Management

1.1 Performance & Financial Monitoring Information.  For the Committee to consider the current 
publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2 – Matters for Consideration

2.1 Work Programme.  For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2.2 Joint Waste Management Performance Review.   To review the level of complaints and service 
KPI’s provided by JWS.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Geoff McManus
Richard Bisset

2.3 Lessons Learnt through the Covid-19 Response.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Geoff McManus

2.4 Woking Borough Council’s Support of Local Businesses During Covid-19.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Giorgio Framalicco

2.5 Dr Gifty Edila’s Report – Update on Recommendations.  To receive an update report on the 
recommendations from Dr Edila’s report in advance of an update being presented to Council in 
February 2022.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Joanne McIntosh

2.6    Financial Review. To receive a report on the Financial Review of Woking Borough Council.
Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

Page 32



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme
None None Girogio Framalicco

Leigh Clarke

Page 33



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

3 – Task Group Updates

3.1 Task Group Update.  To receive an update from any meetings of the three Task Groups under 
the remit of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman of each Task Group

Page 34



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 21 February 2022

1 – Performance Management

1.1 Performance & Financial Monitoring Information.  For the Committee to consider the current 
publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2 – Matters for Consideration

2.1 Work Programme.  For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2.2 Freedom of Information Requests Annual Report.  To review the statistics and requests that 
proceed to the Information Commissioners Office.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Natalie Khan

2.3 Overview of Complaints Received and Contract Review Annual Report.  A review of the 
complaints received over the past year and identify any trends. 

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Joanne McIntosh
Adam Browne

2.4 Enterprise M3.  Stephen Martin, Operations Director of Enterprise M3,will attend the meeting to 
provide an update of the Organisation’s work.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2.5   Guide to Scrutiny of Risk and Commercialisation. The guide to scrutiny of risk and 
commercialisation, published by the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny, will be recieved by the 
committee. 

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

Page 35



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme
None None Frank Jeffrey

Aadam Ahmed

3 – Task Group Updates

3.1 Task Group Update.  To receive an update from any meetings of the three Task Groups under 
the remit of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman of each Task Group

Page 36



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 21 March 2022

1 – Performance Management

1.1 Performance & Financial Monitoring Information.  For the Committee to consider the current 
publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2 – Matters for Consideration

2.1 Work Programme.  For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2.2 Safer Woking Partnership – Community Safety Plan.  The Police and Justice Act 2006 gave 
local authorities responsibility for considering crime and disorder matters. In 2010 the Committee 
agreed that the Safer Woking Partnership Plan would be brought forward annually for scrutiny.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Camilla Edmiston

2.3 Annual Report of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman

2.4 Annual Update on Climate Change. 

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Lara Beattie

2.5 Family Centres – Service Delivery Plan. 

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Adam Thomas

2.6 Review of use of Lakeview Community Centre. The Committee to receive an update on 
planned projects and activities at the Lakeview Community Centre.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

Page 37



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

None None Adam Thomas

3 – Task Group Updates

3.1 Task Group Update.  To receive an update from any meetings of the three Task Groups under 
the remit of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman of each Task Group

Page 38



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – June 2022

1 – Performance Management

1.1 Performance & Financial Monitoring Information.  For the Committee to consider the current 
publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2 – Matters for Consideration

2.1 Work Programme.  For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2.2 Introduction to Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  To receive a short briefing on the roles 
and responsibilities of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2.3 Survey of Leisure Facility Users.  To consider the arrangements for the survey of Leisure 
Facility Users to be undertaken over the Summer.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Steve May

3 – Task Group Updates

3.1 Task Group Update.  To receive an update from any meetings of the three Task Groups under 
the remit of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman of each Task Group

Page 39



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – July 2022

1 – Performance Management

1.1 Performance & Financial Monitoring Information.  For the Committee to consider the current 
publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2 – Matters for Consideration

2.1 Work Programme.  For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

3 – Task Group Updates

3.1 Task Group Update.  To receive an update from any meetings of the three Task Groups under 
the remit of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman of each Task Group

Page 40



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

The Draft Executive Work Programme

The following list sets out the draft forward programme of work for the Executive over the coming year.  
The programme is subject to additions and alterations and will be updated for future meetings of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The purpose of the list is to enable the Members of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to identify those items they would like to scrutinise under the Committee’s function of 
pre-decision scrutiny.  The list includes those items for recommendation to Council as well as those for 
determination by the Executive.

Executive – 18 November 2021

Matters for Consideration

1) Woking Borough Council Digital Transformation Strategy

2) Thameswey Business Plans (to include company consolidation plan)

3) Town Centre Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO)

4) Calendar of Meetings 2022-23

5) Draft General Fund Budget 2022-23

6) Draft Housing Revenue Account Budget Update 2022-23

7) Draft Investment Programme 2021-22 to 2025-26

8) Review of Fees and Charges 2022-23

9) Safeguarding Policy

10) Community Memorial Woodland

11) Monitoring Reports – Projects

12) Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

Executive – 9 December 2021 (Special Meeting)

Matters for Consideration

1) Grants for Voluntary and Community Organisations 2022/23

Page 41



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Executive – 20 January 2022

Matters for Consideration

1) Review of the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)

2) Review of the Outlook, Amenity and Daylight Supplementary Planning Document

3) Review of the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Areas Avoidance Strategy

4) Phase 2 - Infrastructure Capacity Study and Delivery Plan (IDP)

5) Housing Assistance Policy

6) Update on progress of Corporate Strategy and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) against 
Corporate Plan

7) Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

Executive – 3 February 2022

Matters for Consideration

1) General Fund, Service Plans, Budgets and Prudential Indicators 2022-23

2) Housing Revenue Account Budgets 2022-23

3) Investment Programme 2021-22 to 2025-26

4) Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategies

5) New MTFS and Budget

6) Corporate Strategy

7) Smarts Heath Road Woking Gymnastic Centre

8) Monitoring Reports - Projects

9) Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

Page 42



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Executive – 24 March 2022

Matters for Consideration

1) Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 – Annual Monitoring Report

2) Medium Term Financial Strategy

3) Write off of Irrecoverable Debt

4) Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

Page 43



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Current Task Groups Responsible to the Committee

The table below provides a list of current Task Groups established by the Committee, including an 
indication of the resource requirements and the anticipated completion date.  Updates on the progress of 
individual Task Groups are included elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda.

Economic Development Task Group

Remit: The Economic Development Task Group shall comprise seven Members of the 
Council representing all Groups on the Council based on proportionality.  The 
Elected Members to be appointed annually by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in May.  The Portfolio Holder for Promoting the Local Economy shall 
be an ex-officio member. 
Members of the Task Group will be expected to gain the views of Councillors/ 
Officers/ other representatives with a view to reporting those views to the Task 
Group.
Members of the Task Group may also be charged with specific areas to research 
and report back on to the Task Group.
Members of the Task Group may be expected to present proposals to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and, where necessary, prepare written 
reports.
Substitutes may be appointed when necessary.

Membership: Councillors Ali, Barker, Davis, Johnson, Mohammed, Roberts and Whitehand.

Resources: Officer and Councillor time.

Date Established: 11.03.09

Completion Date: Ongoing

Finance Task Group

Remit: The Task Group has been established as a Standing Task Group to review 
financial issues as identified either by itself or the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  The Task Group will receive financial information, including reports 
to the Executive, to enable it to undertake effective scrutiny of the financial 
performance of the Council.

The Task Group will receive reports on areas such as Treasury Management, 
Budget Process and Financial Forecast, Statement of Accounts, Investment 
Programme, Review of Fees and Charges, General Fund Budget, Update on 
Commercial Rents, Update on Irrecoverable Debt, and matters arising from the 
Green Book.  Its Work Programme will be received at each Task Group meeting.  

Membership: Councillors Azad, Aziz, Davis, Johnson, Kirby, Sanderson and Whitehand

Resources: Officer and Councillor time.

Date Established: 25.05.06

Completion Date: Ongoing

Page 44



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Housing Task Group

Remit: The Housing Task Group shall comprise seven Members of the Council 
representing all Groups on the Council based on proportionality.  The Elected 
Members to be appointed annually by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 
May. 
Members of the Task Group will be expected to gain the views of Councillors/ 
Officers/ Portfolio Holder / External Advisors and other representatives with a 
view to reporting those views to the Task Group.
Members of the Task Group may also be charged with specific areas to research 
and report back on to the Task Group. Any investigation requiring funding would 
normally be expected to be part of the existing housing budget. Offsite visits will 
be ad hoc. Requests for additional funds for the purpose would be submitted to 
the Portfolio Holder.
Members of the Task Group may be expected to present proposals to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and, where necessary, prepare written 
reports.

Membership: Councillors Aziz, Barker, Bridgeman, Dorsett, Harlow, Hughes, Kirby and 
Whitehand.

Resources: Officer and Councillor time.

Date Established: 25.05.06

Completion Date: Ongoing

Page 45





OSC21-029

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 18 OCTOBER 2021

THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE’S BUDGET

Executive Summary

This report sets out proposals for the management and oversight of the annual budget of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  This follows the decision of the Committee on 13 September to 
put in place management arrangements for the release of, reporting on and audit of the Scrutiny 
budget.

The proposals within this report have been drawn up in consultation with the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman of the Committee.  Subject to the adoption of the arrangements by the Committee, the 
management arrangements will be included in the revised version of the Council’s Scrutiny Toolkit, 
to be brought forward to a future meeting of the Committee.

Recommendations

The Committee is requested to:

RESOLVE That the protocol for the management and oversight of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s budget, as set out in the appendix 
to this report, be agreed.

The Committee has the authority to determine the recommendation(s) set out above.

Background Papers: None.

Reporting Person: Councillor James Sanderson
Email: cllrjames.sanderson@woking.gov.uk

Contact Person: Frank Jeffrey, Head of Democratic Services
Email: frank.jeffrey@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3012

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ayesha Azad
Email: cllrayesha.azad@woking.gov.uk

Shadow Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ann-Marie Barker
Email: cllrann-marie.barker@woking.gov.uk

Date Published: 8 October 2021

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



The Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Budget

Page 48



The Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Budget

1.0 Introduction

1.1 At its meeting on 30 July 2021, the Council received an update on Council decisions following 
the independent investigation into the Woking Football Club and associated developments.  
Included in the recommendations from the independent investigation was proposal that “WBC 
should allocate a reasonable budget to Overview and Scrutiny Committee for their work”.

1.2 The Council resolved to set aside an annual budget of £20,000 for the Committee and in 
September the Committee resolved that:

“A report be brought to a future meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee proposing 
the adoption of management arrangements for the release of, reporting on and audit of, the 
Scrutiny budget, the proposals to be drafted in consultation with the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman of the Committee.”

1.3 A draft proposal was subsequently drawn up for consideration by the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman of the Committee.  Attached now at Appendix 1 is the final draft proposal which 
incorporates the changes requested by those consulted in its drafting.  The Committee is asked 
to consider the proposed provisions set out in the appendix and adopt the protocol to clarify 
the oversight and management of the budget going forward.

2.0 Corporate Strategy 

2.1 The use of the budget is to be determined by future meetings of the Committee.  However, the 
overall purpose is to give the Committee the freedoms and flexibilities to fully engage with local 
communities as part of its overview and scrutiny responsibilities, one of the key elements of 
achieving the objectives of the Council’s Corporate Plan.  Such engagement may be around 
ensuring residents know who and where to go to discuss issues or make changes in their 
community, encouraging residents to play a greater role in supporting their communities, and 
helping residents to identify and make use of all the resources available to them.

3.0 Implications

Finance and Risk

3.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.  The Protocol seeks to minimise 
any risks around the management of the Committee’s substantial budget and clarify the 
reporting procedures.  Once agreed by the Committee, the Protocol will be incorporated into 
the Council’s Scrutiny Toolkit.

Equalities and Human Resources

3.2 There are no equalities or human resource implications arising from this report.

Legal

3.3 This report has been reviewed by Legal Services who haven’t raised any issues. 

4.0 Engagement and Consultation 

4.1 The draft Protocol has been discussed with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the 
Committee, the Lead Officer for Overview and Scrutiny (Giorgio Framalicco), the Finance 
Team and the relevant Business Support Manager in Financial Services (Steve Hook).  The 
comments of those consulted have been incorporated in the version now before the 
Committee.

REPORT ENDS

Page 49



The Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Budget

Page 50



The Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Budget

Appendix 1

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Budget

Account Protocol

Management arrangements for the release of, reporting on, and audit of, the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee’s budget.

The Budget

The annual budget for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been set at £20,000 for each 
financial year (1 April to 31 March).  Any unused funds will be returned to the Council’s Reserves.

Any funds allocated to a specific project or cost, which have not been used in the financial year 
within which they were allocated, will be accrued to the following year.

(The budget was agreed by Council at its meeting on 30 July 2021.)

Allocation of Funds

Examples of expenditure include professional fees by a third party, venue hire costs, public 
engagement and promotional costs.  

Any request to allocate a sum of money from the budget to cover expenditure incurred in the 
activities of the Committee and its Task Groups is to be set out in a report to the next available 
Committee.  The report, to be drawn up by the Member seeking funds, is to outline what the funds 
would be used for, the timescale for the use of the funds, the impact of the request on the overall 
budget and any financial risks associated with the proposal.  Any Member of the Council may be 
appointed to a Scrutiny Review Task Group and accordingly any Member of the Council may 
submit a request for the allocation of funds from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s budget.

Where possible, requests for the allocation of funds should be accompanied by evidence of the 
expenditure wherever possible such as a quote or an invoice.  

Retrospective requests for the release of funds, where expenditure has already been incurred, will 
only be considered in exceptional circumstances.  

Whenever a Scrutiny Topic Form is completed, the Lead Member should consider what, if any, 
funds may be needed in order to support the work of the Scrutiny Task Group.  The financial 
implications of the scrutiny review are to be reviewed concurrently with the topic proposal.  If 
necessary, requests for additional funds will be considered by the Committee for existing projects.

Release of Payments

The release of funds to third parties or dealt with by internal transfer, where previously approved 
by the Committee, is to be requested by the Chairman of the Committee, the Chairman of the 
relevant Task Group or, in their absence, the respective Vice-Chairman.  The request should be 
made to the Lead Officer for Overview and Scrutiny (Giorgio Framalicco) and/or the Scrutiny and 

Page 51



The Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Budget

Democratic Services Officer (Aadam Ahmed) who will arrange for the payment to be made through 
the Finance Team. 

Any requests for the release of funds should be accompanied with evidence of expenditure such 
as receipts or invoices.  Any invoices should be addressed to Woking Borough Council and should 
be proper tax invoices.  All invoices should be sent to the Scrutiny and Democratic Services Officer 
(Aadam Ahmed, aadam.ahmed@woking.gov.uk) for checking against Committee’s approved 
expenditure for the year, before they are passed electronically to Finance via E-
Invoice@woking.gov.uk. 

The Scrutiny and Democratic Services Officer will preauthorise the invoice and send it to the Head 
of Democratic Services for authorisation on Integra, at which point payment will be made in the 
Council’s payment run prior to the due date of the invoice.

Oversight of Expenditure

A record of all expenditure incurred will be kept by the Scrutiny and Democratic Services Officer 
and will be available for inspection on request.  

An outline of the year’s expenditure and the status of the annual budget will be included in the 
Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (published in March), setting out the 
projects on which funds were expended and any accruals for the following financial year.  A full 
record of all expenditure will be held by the Finance Team for audit purposes.

Page 52

mailto:aadam.ahmed@woking.gov.uk
mailto:E-Invoice@woking.gov.uk
mailto:E-Invoice@woking.gov.uk


 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 54



 

Page 55



 

Page 56



 

1 
Page 57



 

2 

Page 58



 

3 

Page 59



 

4 

Page 60



 

5 

Page 61



 

6 

Page 62



 

7 

Page 63



 

8 

Page 64



 

9 

Page 65



 

10 

Page 66



 

11 

Page 67



 

12 

Page 68



 

13 

Page 69



 

14 

Page 70



 

15 

Page 71



 

Page 72



 

16 

Page 73



 

17 

Page 74



 

18 

Page 75



 

19 

Page 76



 

20 

Page 77



 

21 

Page 78



 

22 

Page 79



 

23 

Page 80



 

24 

Page 81



 

25 

Page 82



 

26 

Page 83



 

27 

Page 84



 

28 

Page 85



 

29 

Page 86



 

30 

Page 87



 

31 

Page 88



 

Page 89



 

32 
Page 90



 

33 

Page 91



 

34 

Page 92



 

35 

Page 93



 

36 

Page 94



 

37 
Page 95



 

38 

Page 96



 

Page 97



 

39 

Page 98



 

40 

Page 99



 

41 

Page 100



 

42 

Page 101



 

43 

Page 102



 

44 

Page 103





OSC21-032

THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 18 OCTOBER 2021

FINANCIAL REVIEW MONTHLY UPDATE

Executive Summary

The Council has commissioned a full, independent and comprehensive review of all the assets and 
liabilities of the Council and all companies of which it has an interest as a component part of the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and integrated service and financial planning. 

This report sets out the timetable for the review and how the review will be taken forward following 
its completion at the end of December 2021.

Recommendations

The Committee is requested to:

RESOLVE That progress on commissioning the independent review of 
the Council’s financial position be noted.

The Committee has the authority to determine the recommendation(s) set out above.

Background Papers: None.

Reporting Person: Councillor James Sanderson
Email: cllrjames.sanderson@woking.gov.uk

Contact Person: Leigh Clarke, Director of Finance
Email: leigh.clarke@woking.gov.uk, 

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ayesha Azad
Email: cllrayesha.azad@woking.gov.uk

Shadow Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ann-Marie Barker
Email: cllrann-marie.barker@woking.gov.uk

Date Published: 8 October 2021

Page 105

Agenda Item 10



Financial Review Monthly Update

1.0 Introduction

1.1 At its meeting on 29 July 2021 a motion moved by Councillor Barker and seconded by 
Councillor Aziz was debated and following a discussion Councillor Azad moved and Councillor 
Ashall seconded the following amendment which was approved:

“This council calls for a full, independent and comprehensive review of all the assets and 
liabilities of Woking Borough Council; and all companies in which it has an interest whether 
by means of shareholding (however large or small) or any other means of influencing the 
activities of said company.  The report is to contain a comprehensive Statement identifying, 
amongst other things:

o An independent reviewer’s assessment of the current net realisable value of each of 
the assets

o Full details of all borrowings including their terms and conditions

o Full details of outstanding contractual obligations involving future income to be received 
and future expenditure to be incurred

o Details of any fixed or floating charges on any assets

o Full details of any grants, loans or other contracts which contain performance conditions 
which, if not met, would incur financial penalties for the Council or any of its companies. 
Council officers should work with the Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee to 
appoint an appropriate independent reviewer

The reviewer must:

o Be allowed full and unfettered access to all the documents and information required 

o Provide monthly progress reports to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

o Complete the review and the full report by the end of December 2021.”

1.2 The Council is an entrepreneurial and commercially orientated Council that has made 
significant commitment and investment into assets and activity within the borough in order to 
support:

 regeneration

 the supply of quality and affordable homes 

 economic development and 

 Council financial independency and resilience. 

1.3 The Council prides itself on providing a comprehensive range of services for the benefit of the 
communities of Woking that are enabled and enhanced by its entrepreneurial and 
commercially orientated approach. 

1.4 Aligned with our culture of adopting risk management as an integral component of good 
management and corporate governance and continually seeking new and improved ways of 
working and establishing sustainable and resilient approaches, the commissioned review will 
give the Council additional insight to:

 The extent that our interest in Companies aligns to supporting the priorities of the Council

Page 106



Financial Review Monthly Update

 Opportunities and exposures arising from our long term assets and interests in 
Companies

 Key strategic risks facing the Council 

 Market economy context and financing strategies related to key risks and opportunities

 Short, medium and long term financial considerations

 A comprehensive statement covering net realisable value of assets, borrowing, 
contractual obligations, fixed and floating charges, grants, loans or other contracts 
containing performance conditions

1.5 A tender process has been carried out with proposals required from potential suppliers by 
Friday 1 October.  The contract for this work will be awarded following evaluation of these 
responses.  An update will provided at the meeting.  

1.6 The commencement of the work is scheduled to begin in the week commencing 11th October. 
The review will produce a final report by the end of December 2021 which will be incorporated 
into the Medium Term Financial Strategy and implications reported in the Budget report to 
Executive on 3rd February 2022.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will consider the report 
at its meeting on 24th January 2022. Council will be required to approve the budget at their 
meeting on 10th February 2022.

1.7 An update on the progress of the financial review will be presented to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 22 November 2021.

2.0 Corporate Strategy 

2.1 The financial review supports the Council’s Corporate plan priority to ensure an innovative, 
proactive and effective Council by securing the effective use of resources. 

3.0 Implications

Finance and Risk

3.1 The cost of the financial review will be confirmed at the meeting following evaluation of the 
proposals.  The review has been commissioned via a procurement exercise in order to ensure 
a high quality report and value for money.

Equalities and Human Resources

3.2 There are no equalities or human resource implications arising from this report.

Legal

3.3 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

4.0 Engagement and Consultation 

4.1 The Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will meet with the team on commencing 
the review.. The team will also need to engage with council and company officers to ensure a 
comprehensive understanding of the financial matters to be addressed by the review.

4.2 A series of community roadshow events are being established through November 2021, 
alongside an engagement questionnaire to get community feedback into the priorities for the 
Council and Communities. This engagement is part of the integrated service and financial 
planning in order to reflect this engagement in the medium term financial strategy and new 
Corporate Plan.

Page 107



Financial Review Monthly Update

REPORT ENDS

Page 108



OSC21-034

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 18 OCTOBER 2021

REPORT OF THE FINANCE TASK GROUP

Executive Summary

The Finance Task Group met on 29 September 2021.  Set out below is the report from the Chairman 
of the Task Group.

It was noted that an update to the Victoria Square financial model (particularly in light of the recently 
announced delay), arrangements with Moyallen and details of loans to external organisations would 
be tabled at the next meeting in November. 

Statement of Accounts

The Task Group discussed the latest status regarding the audit of the 2019/20 accounts and noted 
that some progress was being made with a further update to be given to the November Standards & 
Audit Committee.

The 2020/21 accounts were discussed in some detail and the major movements from the previous 
year were noted, in particular the adjustment to the fair value of the commercial properties of £43m 
loss and significantly higher pension liabilities.  The accounts also included the direct impacts from 
the pandemic such as the lower car parking income and lower commercial rent albeit mitigated to 
some extent by government funding.

Investment Programme

A verbal update was given on this item as this year’s report is still in progress but a draft version will 
be circulated to the Task Group once available.  No significant changes are expected to the list of 
suspended projects at this stage.

Budget Progress, Financial Forecast and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)

A draft version of the Executive report on the MTFS was discussed by the Task Group.  The report 
noted the progress made on the Fit for the Future programme and an outline of the updated savings 
targets over the next 3 years.  An improved brought forward reserves position as of March 2021 was 
noted but there is still a gap between income and expenditure expected requiring the use of reserves 
although £10m less than previously forecast over the next 3 years.  More details of the savings 
proposals is expected in the next iteration of reports in November. 

The August Green Book was reviewed.  Key items discussed were the latest budget outturn, the 
latest situation regarding long term and short term borrowings and the use of the cash balances of 
the Council.

Recommendations

The Committee is requested to:

RESOLVE That the report be noted.

The Committee has the authority to determine the recommendation set out above.

Page 109

Agenda Item 11



Report of the Finance Task Group

Background Papers: None.

Reporting Person: Councillor James Sanderson, Chairman
Email: james.sanderson@woking.gov.uk 

Contact Person: Councillor James Sanderson, Chairman
Email: james.sanderson@woking.gov.uk 

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Simon Ashall
Email: cllrsimon.ashall@woking.gov.uk

Shadow Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ian Johnson
Email: cllrian.johnson@woking.gov.uk

Date Published: 8 October 2021

Page 110



OSC21-035

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 18 OCTOBER 2021

REPORT OF THE HOUSING TASK GROUP

Executive Summary

The Housing Group met on 21 September 2021.  Set out below is the report from the Chairman 
of the Task Group.

New Vision Homes and brining Housing Services In-house

Good progress is being made on the procurement process to replace the services previously 
provided by NVH and Breyer Group, including the repairs service and cleaning of council 
estates.

New Developments

With Hale End Court in Old Woking and Waterman House in Chertsey Road completed the 
task group will visit to review the facilities in late October.
.

Property Refurbishment

Refurbishment of kitchens and bathrooms is being delayed by labour and material shortages. 
The programme is now delayed to 2022

First Homes

The group heard about First Homes, a new government initiative which Councils will 
required to use for 20% of affordable homes in developments from 2022. The scheme 
provides a 30% discount on the market value of a home, with a maximum price up 250K. 
Key workers, armed forces and first time buyers are prioritised. With high house prices in 
Woking only 1 and 2 bedroom home are likely to qualify. Concerns were raised the ability of 
those qualifying for the scheme to raise the likely 10% mortgage deposit required and the 
impact of the flexibility to secure the right affordable housing at each development.

Recommendations

The Committee is requested to:

RESOLVE That the report be noted.

The Committee has the authority to determine the recommendation set out above.

Page 111

Agenda Item 12



Background Papers: None.

Reporting Person: Councillor Ann-Marie Barker
Email: cllrann-marie.barker@woking.gov.uk 

Contact Person: Councillor Ann-Marie Barker
Email: cllrann-marie.barker@woking.gov.uk 

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Debbie Harlow
Email: cllrdebbie.harlow@woking.gov.uk

Shadow Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ann-Marie Barker
Email: cllann-marie.Barker@woking.gov.uk

Date Published: 8 October 2021

Page 112


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes OSC21-033.
	6 Work Programme OSC21-030.
	7 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee's Budget OSC21-029.
	8 Performance and Financial Monitoring Information
	10 Financial Review Monthly Update OSC21-032.
	11 Finance Task Group Update OSC21-034.
	12 Housing Task Group Update OSC21-035

